

MAINE STATE LEGISLATURE

The following document is provided by the
LAW AND LEGISLATIVE DIGITAL LIBRARY
at the Maine State Law and Legislative Reference Library
<http://legislature.maine.gov/lawlib>



Reproduced from scanned originals with text recognition applied
(searchable text may contain some errors and/or omissions)

LAWS
OF THE
STATE OF MAINE

AS PASSED BY THE

ONE HUNDRED AND FIFTEENTH LEGISLATURE

FIRST REGULAR SESSION

December 5, 1990 to July 10, 1991

FIRST SPECIAL SESSION

July 11, 1991 to July 18, 1991

THE GENERAL EFFECTIVE DATE FOR

FIRST REGULAR SESSION

NON-EMERGENCY LAWS IS

OCTOBER 9, 1991

PUBLISHED BY THE REVISOR OF STATUTES
IN ACCORDANCE WITH MAINE REVISED STATUTES ANNOTATED,
TITLE 3, SECTION 163-A, SUBSECTION 4.

J.S. McCarthy Company
Augusta, Maine
1991

PUBLIC LAWS
OF THE
STATE OF MAINE

AS PASSED AT THE
FIRST SPECIAL SESSION

of the

ONE HUNDRED AND FIFTEENTH LEGISLATURE

JULY 11, 1991 to JULY 18, 1991

CHAPTER 595

H.P. 1073 - L.D. 1567

An Act to Provide Identification Cards for Persons 18 to 20 Years of Age

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine as follows:

Sec. 1. 5 MRSA §88-A, sub-§1, as amended by PL 1987, c. 342, §1, is further amended to read:

1. Application. Any person ~~2+~~ 18 years of age or over may apply for an official state nondriver identification card. The application must be on a form provided by the Secretary of State and include any supporting documents and information required by the Secretary of State.

A. The application form must include, directly above the signature line, the following notice to the applicant: "I understand that knowingly supplying false information on this form is a Class D crime under Title 17-A, punishable by confinement of up to 364 days or by monetary fine of up to \$1,000, or both."

Sec. 2. 5 MRSA §88-A, sub-§§2 and 3, as enacted by PL 1987, c. 45, Pt. A, §1, are amended to read:

2. Issuance of card; contents. Upon receipt of a completed application and payment of a fee of ~~\$2,~~ \$5, the Secretary of State shall issue an identification card to the applicant. The Secretary of State shall design cards for persons 18 to 21 years of age so that they are readily distinguishable from cards for persons 21 years of age or older. ~~The~~ Each card must contain:

- A. The applicant's photograph;
B. The applicant's name and address;
C. The applicant's date of birth; and
D. Any other information and identification ~~which~~ that the Secretary of State considers necessary.

3. Validity. ~~The~~ An identification card issued under this section is not valid until signed by the applicant.

Sec. 3. Allocation. The following funds are allocated from the Highway Fund to carry out the purposes of this Act.

Table with 2 columns: 1991-92, 1992-93

SECRETARY OF STATE,
DEPARTMENT OF THE
Administration - Motor Vehicles

Table with 3 columns: Positions, (1), (1)
Personal Services \$22,235 \$29,626
All Other 11,205 3,735
Capital Expenditures 3,225

Provides funds for a Service Representative and general operating expenses to produce the required identification cards.

DEPARTMENT OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE
TOTAL \$36,665 \$33,361

Effective October 17, 1991.

CHAPTER 596

H.P. 457 - L.D. 648

An Act to Amend the Motor Vehicle Title Laws

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine as follows:

Sec. 1. 29 MRSA §1, sub-§1-N is enacted to read:

1-N. Classic vehicle. "Classic vehicle" means a motor vehicle more than 10 years old but less than 25 years old that the Secretary of State determines is of significance to vehicle collectors because of its make, model and condition and is valued at more than \$5,000.

Sec. 2. 29 MRSA §2363, as amended by PL 1987, c. 485, §8, is further amended to read:

§2363. When certificate required

Except as provided in section 2362, this chapter ~~shall apply~~ applies to all vehicles at the time of first registration or when a change of registration is required under section 152 by reason of a sale for consideration, except for vehicles of 1974 model year or older.

The Secretary of State ~~shall~~ may not require an application for a certificate of title upon the renewal of the registration of a vehicle.

The Secretary of State may, upon such documented and notarized evidence of ownership as ~~he~~ the Secretary of State requires and upon payment of a ~~\$20~~ \$40 fee, issue a warranty title to a Maine resident owner of an antique auto ~~or,~~ horseless carriage or classic vehicle. A warranty title ~~shall denote~~ denotes that evidence made available to the Secretary of State indicates that there are no known liens or encumbrances against the vehicle.

The Secretary of State may, upon application in accordance with section 2364, issue a certificate of sal-